FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2023



FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4
Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	8
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position	10
Statement of Cash Flows	12
Notes to Financial Statements	14
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over	
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters	
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in	
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	19



D.C. ELLIS, CPA (1926-2004) R, LARRY TUCKER, CPA R, ALAN CLINE, CPA

JERRY W. BURCHFIELD, CPA
JAMES C. HANEY, CPA
GREGORY J. TUCKER, ACCOUNTANT
SUSAN N. LIVELY, ACCOUNTANT
RHONDA G. HARSHBARGER, OFFICE COORDINATOR

ELLIS, TUCKER & ALDRIDGE, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.etacpas.com

LITTLE ROCK OFFICE 10025 W. MARKHAM, STE 120 LITTLE ROCK, AR 72205-1408 (501) 664-3987 FAX (501) 664-7338 CABOT OFFICE 200 WEST MAIN STREET CABOT, AR 72023-2945 (501) 843-6515 FAX (501) 843-4944

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ARKANSAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CALVIN K, ALDRIDGE, CPA JEFFERY L, GREEN, CPA

AMY G. HALL, CPA
HANNAH N. MITCHELL, CPA
CHRISTI L. ROUNSAVALL, ACCOUNTANT
NOAH G. MYERS, ACCOUNTANT
AMY N. BECKUS, OFFICE COORDINATOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Members of the Public Water Authority Board Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas Furlow, Arkansas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas (Furlow PWA), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Furlow PWA's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas (Furlow PWA), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Furlow Public Water Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
 expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Furlow Public Water Authority of
 Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 4-7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 10, 2024, on our consideration of the Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ellis, Tucker & aldridge, 128

Cabot, Arkansas June 10, 2024

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS Year Ended December 31, 2023

Introduction

As financial management of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas ("Furlow"), we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Furlow, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements as a whole.

Financial Highlights

Operating revenues for Furlow were \$674,860 for the year ended December 31, 2023. This was a decrease of 3.49% from the prior year. The income from operations produced an increase in net position of \$134,330. The term "net position" refers to the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. At the close of the fiscal year 2023, Furlow had a net position of \$2,921,699, an increase of 24.8% over the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' financial statements, which is comprised of the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements. Since Furlow is comprised of a single proprietary fund, no fund level financial statements are shown.

Financial Statements - The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Furlow's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of Furlow's (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources, and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Furlow is improving or deteriorating. Net position increases when revenues and capital contributions exceed expenses. Increases to assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities results in increased net position, which indicates an improved financial position.

Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how a government's net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash receipts and disbursements in future fiscal periods, for example, accounts receivable outstanding at year end will be collected in the following year and accounts payable outstanding at year end will be paid in the following year.

The final required financial statement is the statement of cash flows. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, and investing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis

Net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of Furlow, assets exceeded liabilities by \$2,921,699 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. This represents an increase of \$580,634 or 24.8%, from the previous year, of which an increase of \$134,330 is attributable to operations, while net position increased \$446,304 due to nonoperating revenues and expenses. The unrestricted net position component was \$1,237,618.

A large portion of Furlow's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., water storage, collection and distribution facilities, etc.) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Furlow uses these capital assets to provide services and consequently, these assets are not available to liquidate liabilities or use for other spending.

Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

A condensed summary of Furlow's net position as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 is provided below:

		2023		2022
Current and Non-Current Assets	\$	1,715,064	\$	1,545,921
Capital Assets	-	1,278,841	_	879,471
Total Assets	\$	2,993,905	\$	2,425,392
Current Liabilities	\$	72,206	\$	84,327
Capital Debt Outstanding (Net of Current Portion)		0		0
Total Liabilities	\$	72,206	\$	84,327
Net Position				
Net Investment in Capital Assets	\$	1,278,841	\$	879,471
Unrestricted		1,237,618		1,461,594
Restricted		405,240		0
Total Net Position	\$	2,921,699	\$	2,341,065

A condensed summary of Furlow's changes in net position for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 is provided below:

	2023			2022
Operating Revenues	\$	674,860	\$	699,283
Operating Expenses	-	540,530	-	478,119
Income (Loss) from Operations	\$	134,330	\$	221,164
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)				
Other Income/Expenses	\$	1,949	\$	(1,294)
Interest Income		15,002		847
Grant Income		429,353		0
Interest Expense		0		0_
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	\$	446,304	\$	(447)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position	\$	580,634	\$	220,717
Net Position, Beginning of Year	2-	2,341,065		2,120,348
Net Position, End of Year	\$	2,921,699	\$	2,341,065

Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cash Flows - Net cash provided by operating activities was \$236,206. Net cash used by capital and related financing activities was (\$43,967). Net cash from investing activities was \$8,207.

Significant Events - Grant funds were received from Lonoke County originating with the federal government. These funds are to be used for infrastructure impovements.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - Furlow's investment in capital assets amounted to \$1,278,841 net of accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2023, an increase of \$399,370 compared to the prior year. Capital Assets include the water system, buildings, and office furniture and equipment. Total additions in 2023 were \$422,510. Depreciation expense was \$73,951.

Long-Term Debt - Furlow issued no bonds during 2023 and does not have any long-term debt as of December 31, 2023.

Subsequent Events

No subsequent events occurred that materially affected the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' finances for all those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Furlow Manager, C/O Mid-Arkansas Utilities PWA, 26975 AR Hwy 107, Cabot, AR 72023.

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets			
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	1,057,248	
Restricted Cash		405,240	
Certificates of Deposit Maturing			
After Three Months		181,677	
Total Cash and CD's	\$	1,644,165	
Accounts Receivable - Net		24,066	
Earned and Unbilled Revenues		45,837	
Prepaid Expenses		996	
* *	====		\$ 1,715,064
Capital Assets			
Water Distribution System	\$	1,294,976	
Storage Tanks		965,596	
Meter Stations and Control Equipment		271,943	
Building		4,650	
Furniture and Fixtures		837	
	\$	2,538,002	
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	-	(1,498,123)	
	\$	1,039,879	
Land and Easements		12,500	
Water Rights		156,448	
Future Capital Improvement Expenditures		19,203	
Construction in Progress	_	50,811	
			 1,278,841
			\$ 2,993,905

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF NET POSITION December 31, 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities			
Accounts Payable	\$ 55,423		
Prepaid Water Sales	6,768		
Sales Tax Payable	3,047		
Liability for Abandoned Property	1,138		
Customer Meter Deposits	 5,830		
		\$	72,206
Net Position Net Investment in Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted	\$ 1,278,841 405,240 1,237,618	-	2,921,699
		\$	2,993,905

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION Year Ended December 31, 2023

Operating Revenues				
Water Sales	\$	524,712		
Connection Fees and Service Charges		53,037		
Late Payment Charges		23,183		
LWPWA Surcharge		67,203		
Public Water System Fee	-	6,725		
			Ф	
			\$	674,860
Operating Expenses	Φ.	101 (00		
Purchase of Water	\$	131,693		
Billing Services		103,154		
LWPWA Required Payments		81,420		
Maintenance and Repairs		85,775		
Depreciation and Amortization		73,951		
Professional Fees		19,192		
Other Service Charges/Expenses		18,452		
Credit Card Fees		8,672		
Bad Debt Expense		(10,855)		
Health Department Fees		5,818		
Insurance		5,413		
Office Supplies		2,371		
Utilities		979		
Dues and Subscriptions		2,458		
Board Meeting Expense		650		
Communications/Meters		9,699		
Miscellaneous		1,688		
				540,530
Income (Loss) from Operations (Forward)			\$	134,330

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION Year Ended December 31, 2023

Income (Loss) from Operations (Forwarded)			\$ 134,330
Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses		1 0 10	
Other Income/Expenses	\$	1,949	
Interest Income		15,002	
Grant Income	=====	429,353	
			446,304
Change in Net Position			\$ 580,634
Net Position, Beginning of Year			 2,341,065
Net Position, End of Year			\$ 2,921,699

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		
Cash Received from Customers	\$	718,724
Payments to Suppliers		(482,518)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	\$	236,206
Cash Flows from Investing Activities		
Interest Income	\$	15,002
Increase in Certificates of Deposit, Not Cash Equivalents		(6,795)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities	\$	8,207
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		
Grant Proceeds	\$	429,353
Acquisition of Capital Assets		(473,320)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital	U	
and Related Financing Activities	\$	(43,967)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash	\$	200,446
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year		1,262,042
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year	\$	1,462,488
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	1,057,248
Restricted Cash Included in Noncurrent Assets		405,240
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year	\$	1,462,488

FURLOW PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY OF LONOKE COUNTY, ARKANSAS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Reconciliation of Income (Loss) from Operations to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Income (Loss) from Operations	\$ 134,330
Adjustments to Reconcile Income (Loss) from Operations	
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	
Depreciation and Amortization	\$ 73,951
Interest Income Added to Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash	0
Other Income/Expense	1,949
(Increase) Decrease in:	
Accounts Receivable-Net	34,914
Revenues Earned and Unbilled	3,941
Prepaid Expenses	(758)
Increase (Decrease) in:	
Accounts Payable	(14,730)
Customer Meter Deposits	(450)
Prepaid Water Sales	3,059
Total Adjustments	\$ 101,876
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	\$ 236,206

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Financial Reporting Entity

On August 8, 2011, the Arkansas Natural Resources Commission declared Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas to be a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of Arkansas. The Board of Directors of Furlow Water Users Association, Inc. authorized the transfer of the assets and liabilities of Furlow Water Users Association, Inc. to Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas. This caused Furlow Water Users Association, Inc. to cease to exist. Furlow Public Water Authority is a governmental unit separate from the general government of Lonoke County, Arkansas. Furlow Public Water Authority was formed to own and operate water distribution facilities in Lonoke County and to obtain financing for capital improvements at tax exempt rates.

(2) Proprietary Fund

Furlow's operations are accounted for as a proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis are to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

(3) Basis of Accounting

The Board's proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned, rather than when they are received, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred, rather than when they are paid.

(4) Accounts Receivable - Net

Accounts Receivable - Net is stated at customer unpaid balances, less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Unpaid balances the day prior to the billing for December water useage are considered to be doubtful as water service has been cut-off at that point. Management has chosen not to write-off any individual balances in anticipation of future collections should a customer request service in the future.

(5) Earned and Unbilled Revenues

Revenue from water delivered to customers but not billed as of year end is recorded on the financial statements as earned and unbilled revenues.

(6) Customer Deposits

Prior to 2020, new customers were required to pay a deposit which was held until their account was closed. This policy was changed in January 2020, requiring new customers to pay a nonrefundable initial fee of \$100. Existing deposits were applied to customers' accounts to offset billings.

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(7) Capital Assets

All properties and equipment expenditures are recorded at cost and capitalized. Depreciation is provided by applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The original water system and major expansions are depreciated over 25 years. Storage tanks are depreciated over 40 years. Estimated useful lives for depreciating buildings and equipment are 20 and 10 years, respectively. Repairs and maintenance, which do not improve or extend the lives of the related assets, are expensed when incurred.

(8) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

For purposes of presentation in the statement of cash flows, Furlow considers restricted and unrestricted demand deposit accounts, certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased and money market accounts to be included in total cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents.

(9) Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments

Cash deposits and investments of Furlow Public Water Authority are restricted by Arkansas law to investments in obligations of the United States government and deposits with financial institutions located within the State of Arkansas. Investments are restricted by trust indenture to government securities, money market funds comprised exclusively of government securities, or certificates of deposit issued by banks that are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). To the extent the certificates of deposit are not insured by the FDIC, they must be secured by a pledge of government securities.

(10) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(11) Net Position

The Net Investment in Capital Asset component of Net Position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for their acquisition. Unspent debt proceeds are excluded. The Restricted component of Net Position consists of Restricted Assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets. The Unrestricted component of Net Position is the amount of the assets and liabilities that are not included in the determination of Net Investment in Capital Assets or the Restricted component of Net Position.

Note B - Cash, Certificates of Deposit, and Restricted Funds

The following bank accounts are identified as to their location and intended use:

		C	ertificates
	Cash		f Deposit
First Arkansas Bank & Trust			
Operations and Maintenance	\$ 652,687		
First State Bank			
Grant Funds	432,505		
Bank of England			
Captial Improvements	374,537		
Certificates of Deposits with Original			
Maturities of More than Three Months			
First State Bank			
Matures 3/13/25 @ 4.27%			181,678
		\$	181,678

First Arkansas Bank & Trust balances exceeding FDIC limits were covered by pledged Arkansas municipal bonds of \$1,565,000 market value at December 31, 2023.

Bank of England balances exceeding FDIC limits were covered by pledged Arkansas municipal bonds of \$185,394 market value at December 31, 2023.

First State Bank balances exceeding FDIC limits were covered by pledged Arkansas municipal bonds of \$471,663 market value at December 31, 2023.

Note C - Accounts Receivable, Net

The total accounts receivable have been reduced by \$66,508, which is management's estimate of the potential doubtful accounts.

Note D - Capital Assets

Capital assets are summarized as follows:

	E	Beginning of Year	A	dditions	Del	etions	4	End of Year
Capital Assets								
(Depreciable):								
Water Distribution System	\$	872,466	\$	422,510	\$	0	\$	1,294,976
Storage Tanks		965,596						965,596
Meter Station, Equipment		271,943						271,943
Building		4,650						4,650
Furniture and Fixtures		837						837
	\$	2,115,492	\$	422,510	\$	0	\$	2,538,002
Less Accumulated								
Depreciation		1,424,172		73,951				1,498,123
	\$	691,320	\$	348,559	\$	0	\$	1,039,879
Capital Assets								
(Non-Depreciable):								
Land and Easements		12,500						12,500
Water Rights		156,448						156,448
Future Improvements		19,203						19,203
Construction in Progress				50,811				50,811
Total Capital Assets	\$	879,471	\$	399,370	\$	0	\$	1,278,841

Note E - Bonds Payable

There was no debt activity during the year or debt outstanding at year end.

Note F - Water Source Contract

Furlow purchases a portion of its water from Jacksonville Water Works. These purchases are not under contract. Additionally, Furlow began purchasing water in 2014 under a forty year contract with Lonoke White Public Water Authority, of which it is a member. The minimum monthly purchase amounts to \$4,182. See also Note H below.

Note G - Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Budgetary comparison information has not been presented as there is no legal requirement to adopt a budget and one has not been adopted.

Note H - LWPWA Required Payments

As a member of Lonoke White Public Water Authority, in addition to a contracted minimum water purchase, members have also contracted to pay a monthly fee for each water meter in the member's system. These payments are shown on the financial statement as LWPWA Required Payments. This contract is effective for 40 years from the date of the initial delivery of water. Furlow Public Water Authority has added a surcharge to customer bills to recoup this cost.

Note I - Fiduciary Activity

Furlow Public Water Authority began providing a billing service for Furlow Wastwater PFB in 2020. Furlow Public Water Authority is not charging a fee for this service. Fees collected in 2023, including installation charges, amounted to \$31,224. Payments remitted were \$30,629. The balance due to Furlow Wastewater at December 31, 2023 was \$2,395. This is included in accounts payable in the statement of financial position.

Note J - Date of Management's Review

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 10, 2024 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note K - Subsequent Event

No subsequent events were noted that materially affected the financial statements.



ELLIS, TUCKER & ALDRIDGE, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.etacpas.com

D.C. ELLIS, CPA (1926-2004) R. LARRY TUCKER, CPA R. ALAN CLINE, CPA

JERRY W. BURCHFIELD, CPA
JAMES C. HANEY, CPA
GREGORY J. TUCKER, ACCOUNTANT
SUSAN N. LIVELY, ACCOUNTANT
RHONDA G. HARSHBARGER, OFFICE COORDINATOR

LITTLE ROCK OFFICE 10025 W. MARKHAM, STE 120 LITTLE ROCK, AR 72205-1408 (501) 664-3987 FAX (501) 664-7338 CABOT OFFICE
200 WEST MAIN STREET
CABOT, AR 72023-2945
(501) 843-6515
FAX (501) 843-4944

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ARKANSAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CALVIN K, ALDRIDGE, CPA JEFFERY L. GREEN, CPA

AMY G. HALL, CPA
HANNAH N. MITCHELL, CPA
CHRISTI L. ROUNSAVALL. ACCOUNTANT
NOAH G. MYERS, ACCOUNTANT
AMY N. BECKUS, OFFICE COORDINATOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the Public Water Authority Board Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas Furlow, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas, which comprise the statement of net position as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Furlow Public Water Authority of Lonoke County, Arkansas' financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ellis, Tucker & Oldridge, 12P Cabot, Arkansas

June 10,2023